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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jagaran Microfin Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2021, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 45 of the financial statements in which the Company describes
the continuing uncertainties arising from the COVID 19 pandemic which are dependent on
future developments.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
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significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.
1 Expected credit losses (ECL) on loans Our audit procedures in relation to

(Refer Note 7 read with Note 27 to the
financial statements)

The management estimates impairment
provision using Expected Credit loss
(ECL) model for the loan exposure.
Recognition and measurement of
impairment of loans involve significant
management judgement. The
Company’s impairment allowance is
derived from estimates including the
historical default and loss ratios. The
impairment loss provision also involves
estimate of the potential impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic which are
dependent on future developments and
which are highly uncertain. Collective
impairment allowances are calculated
using ECL model which approximate
credit conditions on homogenous
portfolios of loans.

The RBI has also announced various
relief measures for the borrowers which
were implemented by the Company
such as "COVID 19 Regulatory Package-
Asset Classification and Provisioning”
announced by the RBI on 17 April 2020
and RBI circular on “Asset Classification
and Income Recognition following the
expiry of Covid-19 regulatory package”
dated 07 April 2021 (collectively
referred to as ‘the RBI circulars’), and
“Resolution Framework for COVID-19
related Stress” (the  ‘Resolution
Framework”’) dated on 6 August 2020,
which has also been considered by the
management in identification,
classification and provisioning of loan
assets for impairment.

Further, the disclosures made in the
financial statements for ECL especially
in relation to judgements and estimates
by the Management in determination of

expected credit losses were focused on
obtaining sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as to whether the expected
credit losses recognised in the financial
statements were reasonable and the
related disclosures in the financial
statements made by the management
were adequate.

These procedures inciuded, but not
limited, to the following:

(a) obtained an understanding of the
model adopted by the Company for
calculation of expected credit losses
including how management calculated
the expected credit losses and the
appropriateness of the data on which
the calculation is based;

(b) Tested the key assumptions used by
the Company in the ECL model. Tested
the input data used for determining the
PD and LGD rates and agreed the data
with the underlying books of accounts
and records;

(c) Tested sampies for staging of loans
based on their past - due status to
check compliance with requirements of
Ind AS 109;

(d) Tested the arithmetical calculation
of the workings of the expected credit
losses;

(e) Evaluated the appropriateness, in
accordance  with the applicable
accounting standard and approved
policies as per the RBI guidelines, of the
determination of significant increase in
credit risk on account of moratorium
and restructuring benefit extended. On
a test check basis, assessed that the
restructuring was approved and
implemented in accordance with such
policy, and the provjsiens. created on
3 73
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the ECL involve increased level of audit

such restructured loan assets were in

focus. compliance with  the aforesaid
guidelines;

The aforesaid involves significant
management estimates/ judgements
and hence identified as Key Audit Matter

(KAM).

(f) Assessed disclosures included in the
Ind AS financial statements in respect
of expected credit losses including the
specific disclosures made with regard to
the management's evaluation of the
uncertainties arising from COVID-19
and its impact on ECL estimation.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

¢ In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
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reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements. e
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Companys internal
financial controls over financia! reporting.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company being a private company, Section 197 of the Act related
to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information a___;rJ :r--«....\dmg to the
explanations given to us: /@f _
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i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iiil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Kolkata, September 10, 2021

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)
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Abhijit Bandyapadhyay
Partner

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 21054785AAAAFR2421
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jagaran
Microfin Private Limited (the "Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiql‘ér__;_.‘f;:ﬁ;llur\g and the
E . &

(& &
'-::'I." Chartere m",
12|Acco_|.1@s’m f
Lol -~ A

e



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controis over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.302009E)

J—l—i“-; JA v-—Lf‘".":

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
Partner

{(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 21054785AAAAFR2421

Kolkata, September 10, 2021
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date)

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by
the management in accordance with a regular program of verification, which,
in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and buiiding and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the CARO 2016 is
not applicable

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)
of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
under the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
hence reporting under Clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year and it did not have any unclaimed deposits
at the beginning of the year. Hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not
applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
clause (vi) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods &
Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the
appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Service Tax and
Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
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institutions, banks and dues to debenture holders. The Company has not taken any
loans or borrowings from government.

(ix)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer during the year.
In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, money raised by way
of further public offer of debt securities and the term loans have been applied by
the Company during the year for the purposes for which they were raised, other
than temporary deployment pending application of proceeds.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

(xiii) The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of Section 177 and
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has disclosed the details of related party transactions in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or directors of its holding company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained the registration.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 302009E)

ALy

Abhijit Bandyopadhyay
Partner

(Membership No. 054785)
UDIN: 21054785AAAAFR2421

Kolkata, September 10, 2021



JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(Al amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

|
Particulars Notes | Asat March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents a4 13,21,57,522 26,73,62,459
Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 49,52,13,065 55,99,24,920
Receivables
{I)Trade Receivables 6 1,46,231 1,15,302
Loans 7 3,20,29,25,821 4,65,50,74,477
Investments 8 - 50,33,593
Other Financial Assets 9 13,84,64,754 19,38,52,842
Non-financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net) 10 57,35,796 53,20,278
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11 10,02,38,550 2,76,67,616
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 92,26,717 ' 1,10,19,332
Other Intangible Assets 13 29,48,964 33,96,508
Other Non-financial Assets 14 19,52,808 26,04,100
TOTAL ASSETS 4,08,90,10,228 5,73,13,71,427
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
(1) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | - -

(11} total Dutstanding bues ot Creditors Uther than Micro knterprises and Small 15 3,64,30,682 1,68,53,409

Enterprises
Debt Securities 16 63,09,51,935 80,70,31,446
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 17.1 2,43,04,79,011 | 3,85,01,49,275
Subordinated Liabilities 17.2 5,00,43,081 5,00,41,802
Non-financial Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 18 3,39,36,811 | 73,12,991
Provisions 19 48,56,143 60,73,819
Other Non-financial Liabitities 20 18,05,028 62,22,851
Equity
Equity Share Capital 21 48,29,62,000 48,29,62,000
Other Equity 22 41,75,45,537 50,47,23,834
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY i 4,08,90,10,228 5,73,13,71,427
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. | 2tod47

In terms of our attached report

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302009E
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Abhijit BandyopadHyay
Partner
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Place: Kolkata
Date: September 10, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Jagaran Microfin Private Limited

i

Sourav Ghosh
Managing Director
DIN: 08154243

el

Tirtha Pratim Sahu
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata
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Jaydeep Ghosh
Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN: 07475085

Tanusree Ghosh
Company Secretary

Date: September 10, 2021




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(All amount in T, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
. Notes | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from Operations 1 |
Interest Income 23 1,04,84,85,281 1,05,72,80,469
| Dividend Income 24 88,995 51,34,094
Total Revenue from Operations 1,04,85,74,276 1,06,24,14,563
Other Income 25 2,68,377 11,06,668
Total Income 1,04,88,42,653 | 1,06,35,21,231
Expenses
Finance Costs 26 55,85,32,595 57,91,44,628
Impairment on Financial instruments 27 29,99,98,136 4,53,85,422
Employee Benefits Expenses 28 16,34,08,885 15,31,76,641
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 29 49,89,754 48,56,527
Other Expenses 30 8,93,30,937 | 9,01,85,432
Total Expenses 1,11,62,60,307 87,27,48,650
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (6,74,17,654) 19,07,72,581
Tax Expense
{a) Current Tax 11.2 5,44,23,910 5,76,38,648
(b) Deferred Tax 11.2 | (7,27,57,820) (1,55,08,611)
(1,83,33,910) 4,21,30,037
Profit/(Loss) for the year {(4,90,83,744) ~14,86,42,544
Other Comprehensive Income:
(a) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss:
(i) Re-measurements of the Defined Benefit Plans 7,29,293 (19,32,512)
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss (1,86,886) 4,86,375
(b) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss: | - —
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, Net of Tax 5,42,407 {14,46,137)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year I (4,85,41,337) 14,71,96,407
| 1
Earnings per Equity Share (Face Value of ¥ 10/- each)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share () 33 (1.01) 3.20
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. | 2to 47
In terms of our attached report
|
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Jagaran Microfin Private Limited
Firm Registration No. 302009E L
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity
As at As at
Particul Notes
arptars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 21 48,29,62,000 & 43,49,62,000

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - 4,80,00,000

Balance at the end of the year 48,29,62,000 48,29,62,000 |

(B) Other Equity -

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Notes ", ) ) ) Total
Securities Premium| Statutory Reserves Retained Earnings

As at April 01, 2019 22 4,35,13,000 8,35,40,746 25,13,98,046 37,84,51,792
Profits/(Loss) after Tax for the year - - 14,86,42,544 14,86,42,544
Issue of Equity Shares during the year 4,20,00,000 - - 4,20,00,000
Dividend Paid - - 5,21,95,440 5,21,95,440
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - - 1,07,28,925 1,07,28,925
Transferred to Statutory Reserve - 2,97,28,509 2,97,28,509 -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - (14,46,137)_. (14,46,137)
As at March 31, 2020 22 8,55,13,000 11,32,69,255 30,59,41,579 | 50,47,23,834
Profits/(Loss) after Tax for the year - - (4,90,83,744) (4,90,83,744)
Dividend Paid - - 3,86,36,960 3,86,36,960
Transferred to Statutory Reserve - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) - - 5,42,407 5,42,407
As at March 31, 2021 8,55,13,000 11,32,69,255 | 21,87,63,282 41,75,45,537
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial 2 t047

statements.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Allamount in T, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended March _

For the year ended March 31,

[A~|CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax
Adjustments for:
| | Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
| | Impairment of Financial Instruments
| Dividend Income
1 Interest Income on Deposits
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjustment for changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
Ad’'ustments for lincrease|/decrease in Operating Assets:
Loans
Trade Receivables
Other Financial Assets
Other Non-financial Assets

Adjustments for increase/|decrease| in ojierating liabilities:
Trade Payables

Provisions
Other Non-financial Liabilities

Cash generated from/{used in) Operations
Income Tax Paid
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Purchase of Investment in Mutual Fund
Sale of Investment in Mutual Fund

Interest Income on Deposits
Dividend Income
Net cash generated from/{used in) Investing Activities

IC !CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid
Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)
Issue of Subordinated Liabilities
Borrowings from Banks and NBFCs
Repayment of Borrowings to Banks and NBFCs
issue of Share Capital
Net Cash generated from/{used) in Financing Activities

Net increase/{decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {(A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of year {Refer Note 4)

Investment in /Redemption of Deposits with Banks & NBFCs (net)

Add: Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 4)

PARTICULARS iy 2020
(6,74,17,654) 15,07,72,581
49,89,754 48,56,527
29,99,98,136 4,53,85,422
(88,995} (51,34,094)
(4,52,86,711) (4,09,95,756)
19,21,94,530 19,48,84,680
1,15,21,50,521 (78,95,47,035)
(30,929) 13,33,480
(5,16,463) (15,38,561)
6,51,292 39,41,257
1,95,77,273 (45,44,007)
(4,88,383) 19,67,761
(44,17,823) 5,11,424
1,35,91,20,018 {59,29,91,001)
(2,82,15,608| 5,73,11,847)
1,33,09,04,410 (65,03,02,848)
(27,49,595) (53,72,455)
(4,01,15,170) (3,62,26,43,434)
4,51,48,756 3,61,76,09,841
12,06,16,406 (26,17,40,375)
4,52,86,711 4,09,95,756
88,995 51,34,094
16,82,76,103 | (22,60,16,573)
(3,86,36,960) (5,21,95,440)
- (1,07,28,925)
- 22,00,00,000
- 5,00,00,000
1,11,50,00,000 3,02,50,00,000
(2,71,07,48,490) (2,45,96,62,635)
- 9,00,00,000
(1,63,43,85,450) 86,24,13,000 |
o |
|
(13,52,04,937) {1,39,06,421)
|
26,73,62,459 28,12,68,879 |
13,21,57,522 26,732,459 |

Additional notes to Cash Flow Statement:

1. Figures in brackets indicate outflows.

2. Previous year figures have been regrouped/restated wherever necessary

In terms of our report attached
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate Information

Jagaran Microfinance Private Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956. The Company is registered as a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC-ND’) with the
Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) and has got classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company — Micro Finance Institution
(‘NBFC-MFY’) with effect from September 27, 2013.

The Company is engaged primarily in providing micro finance services to women who are enrolled as members and
organized as Joint Liability Groups {"JLG’).

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) per read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain items which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or services. The
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), except when otherwise indicated.

2.1. Presentation of Financial Statements
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity.

The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They
are offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly, the Company offsets
incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by ind AS specifically.

2.2.  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of items, it is
possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the Management’s
estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial
statements for e.g.:

. Business model assessment (Refer Note no. 3.13)
J Effective interest rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.1)

. Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note no. 3.14)

J Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)

. Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note n0.3.9)

° Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no. 3.11)

. Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)
3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.1 Revenue Recognition
3.1.1 Interest Income

Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable and are an integral
part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other
than credit-impaired assets.

3.1.2 Interest on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) is recognised in accordance with the
contractual terms of the instrument.

3.1.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

3.1.4 The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains
on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis.

3.2 Finance Cost
Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.
3.3  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4  Property, Plant and Equipment {'PPE’) Initial Recognition and Measurement:

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

3.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.6  Depreciation and amortization
3.6.1 Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is measured using the straight line method as per the useful lives
of the assets estimated by the management. The useful life estimated by the management is as under:

Category of Asset | Useful Life (Years)

Furniture and fittings 10

| Office equipments 05

Vehicles | 08 |

Computers (including Servers) [ 03 |
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.6.2 Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The management
has determined its estimate of useful economic life as five years. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed
at each financial year and adjusted.

3.7 Impairment of Non—financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.9 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

3.10 Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
3.10.1 Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and superannuation are defined contribution schemes. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company recognises
contribution payable to the respective funds as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

3.10.2 Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each year. Gains or losses through remeasurements of net benefit
liabilities/ assets are recognised with corresponding charge/credit to the retained earnings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

3.10.3 Other Employee Benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on
the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right
to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. ,.-""f -
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

3.11 Taxes
3.11.1 Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to
items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the statement profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity).

3.11.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside the statement
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

3.12 Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity
shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity,




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.13.1 Financial Assets
3.13.1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends
on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets (not
measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

3.13.1.2 Classification and Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Loans at amortised cost

- Loans at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Investments in debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
3.13.1.3 Loans at Amortised Costs

Loans are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) Such loan is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

{b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.13.1.4 Investment in Mutual Funds at Amortised Cost

Investments in liquid mutual funds are measured at amortised cost and is classified as FVTPL by accounting for any
gain/loss during the period.

3.13.2 Financial Liabilities
3.13.2.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at amortised cost.

3.13.2.2 Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

3.13.3 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified.

3.13.4 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
3.13.4.1 De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
recoghised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company also de-
recognises the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfef, qulifieg for de-recogniti
o N
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
- It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset Or

- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
one or more entities {the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent
plus accrued interest at market rates.

- The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.
- The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash
equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required
remittance to the eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of
the Company's continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: (a) the carrying amount (measured at
the date of derecognition) and (b) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

3.13.4.2 De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the re-cognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14 Impairment of Financial Assets
3.14.1 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Allowance Principles

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans at amortised cost and EVOCI and
other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL)).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on a collective basis for identified homogenous pool of loans.
- /Reskins,
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Accordingly, the Company groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 month ECLs. Stage 1
loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 or
Stage 3.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an
allowance for the LTECLs.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the LTECLs.

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is
considered a (partial) de-recognition of the financial asset.

3.14.2 The Calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios and historical data to measure the
expected cash shortfalls. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given default
(LGD). ECL is calculated by multiplying them. Refer Note 37 for explanation of the relevant terms.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the expected life of a financial instrument.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company calculates
the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated
over the lifetime of the instrument.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these
loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

3.15 Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing
the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first
treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to the statement profit and loss account.

3.16 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either :- In the principal market for the
asset or liability, or- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets
and liabilities for which fair value is measured are categorised with fair value hierachy into Level I, Level Il and Level
Il based on level of input. Q:Qs_k{/}&
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3.17 Segment Information

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for
the purpose of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments'. The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.

3.18 Foreign Currency

3.18.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

3.18.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the period.
3.19 Leases (where the Company is the lessee)

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

4  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars Asat March31,2021 | AsatMarch 31,2020 |
Cash in Hand 64,96,614 6,86,324
Balances with Banks - in Current Accounts 12,56.60,908 26.66,76.135
13,21.57,522 26.73,62.459 |
5 Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents T
Particulars . As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020 |
Balances with Banks - In Fixed Deposit Accounts* 49,52,13,065 55,99,24,920
(Including accrued interest for fixed deposits} |
. 49,52,13,065 55,99,24,920
* Fixed Deposits are under lien against borrowings availed by the Company (except Fixed Deposits not under lien as at March 31, 2021 : ¥ 13,88,81,728, March 31, 2020 : ¥
12,23,32,758) :
6  Receivables
Trade Receivables* R
Particulars As atMarch 31,2021 | Asat March 31, 2020 ]
{a) Unsecured Considered Good 1,46,231 | 1,15,302
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance I | - |
1,46.231 1,15302
(b) Credit Impaired - -
Less: Aliowance for Impairment Loss Allowance - -
| i 146,231 1,15,302 |
*Trade Receivables includes dues in respect of Commission on Business Correspondance (BC) Income
Ageing of Trade Receivables and Credit Risk arising therefrom is as below: ____AsatMarch 31, 2021 |
Particulars Gross Carrying Allowance for Credit Net Carrying Amount
. Amount . Loss ]
Overdue till Three Months 1,46,231 - 1,46,231
Overdue between Three to Six Months - -
Overdue between Six Months to One year - -
More than 1 year overdue - | - ]
146231 ] - 146231
| ___Asat March 31, 2020
Particulars Gross Carrying Allowance for Credit Net Carrying Amount
- Amount Loss _
Overdue tili Three Months 1,15,302 - 1,15,302
Overdue between Three to Six Months - -
Overdue between Six Months to One year - |
More than 1 year overdue '_ - C | |
S— 1,15.302 - 1,15,302 |
7 Lloans .
Particulars _AsatMarch 31,2021 | Asat March 31, 2020
Unsecured, At Amortised Cost ‘
Term Loans 3,57,59,65,516_ 4,73,45,61,860
Total (Gross) 3,57,59,65,516 4,73.45,61,860
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 37.30,39.695 794,87 383
Total (Net) 3,20,29,25,821 4,65,50,7%77
In India
Others 3,57,59,65,516 4,73,45,61,860
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance 37,30,39,695 7,94,87,383
Total (Net) 3,20,29,25,821 4,65,50,74,477

Note 1: The contractual amount outstanding on Financial Assets that were written off during the reporting period and are still 'su'bject to enforcement activity as on March 31, 2021
is T 64,45,824 (Previous year ¥ 60,05,593)

Note 2: The change in Expected Credit Loss Allowance of the portfolio was driven by an change in the size of the portfolio and movements between age buckets as a result of
increase or decrease in credit risk of the-receivables.

8 Investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Investment in Mutual Fund (Wholly In India) - At Fair Value through Profit and Loss - 50.33,593
| Units as on March,2021: NiL, March 31, 2020: 4935.766 units of HDFC Liquid Fund! = 5033593
9  Other Financial Assets =
Particulars I As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Security Deposit 78,42,159 79,61,160
Term Deposits with Non Banking Financial Companies* 12,67,72,875 18,26,77,426
Receivables in respect of TDS Amount 29,18,824 29,14,018
Other Advances 9,30.896 . 3,00,238
13,84,64,754 19,38,52,842
Total . 13,84,64.754 |

* Term deposits are under lien against borrowings.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

10

11

Current Tax Assets [Net)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Advance income Tax [net of Income tax provision of ¥15,03,06,070 (March 31, 2020: ¥ 9,26,67,420)] 57,35,796 53,20,278
. 57,35;796 | 53,20,278 |

Deferred Tax Assets [Net| -
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020 |
Tax Effect on Items constituting Deferred Tax Asset:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 4,33,567 1,90,954
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 64,94,309 1,31,41,773
Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance 9,55,93,660 2,05,82,720
Disallowance under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 | 23,83,316 30,93,483
Tota! Deferred Tax Assets 10,49,04,852 3,70,08,930
Tax Effect on Items constituting Deferred Tax Liability:

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost | (46,66,302) {93,41,314)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities : 146,66,302) (93,41,314)
Deferred Tax Asset {Net| | 10,02,38,550 | 2,76,67,616

11.1 Movement in Deferred Tax Assets for year ended March 31, 2021:
. As at Statement of Profit | Other Comprehensive As at
Particulars ;
April 01, 2020 or Loss income March 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Assets for Deductible Temporary Differences on: B

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 1,90,954 2,42,613 - 4,33,567

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 1,31,41,773 {66,47,464) - 64,94,309

Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance 2,05,82,720 7,50,10,940 = 9,55,93,660

Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 30,93,483 15,23,281) 11,86,886) 2383316 |

Total 3,70,08,930 | 6,80,82,808 (1,86,886) 10,49,04,852

||

Deferred Tax Liabilities for Taxable Temporary Differences on:

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost | 193.41,314| 46,75,012 - 146.66,302|

Total (93,41,314) 46,75,012 - (46,66,302)
\Deferred Tax Asset [Net| 2,76,67,616 | 7.27,57,820 | 1,86,886] 10,02,38 550

_Movement in Deferred Tax Assets for year ended March 31, 2020:

. Asat Statement of Profit = Other Comprehensive As at
Particulars .
April 01, 2019 or Loss income March 31, 2020

IDeferred Tax Assets for Deductible Temporary Differences on: [ o i

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 1,00,67,608 30,74,165 - 1,31,41,773

Provision for Impairment Loss Allowance 79,75,170 1,26,07,550 - 2,05,82,720

Disaliowance under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 21,114,205 492,903 486375 1 30,93 483

Total 2,01,56,983 1,61,74,618 4,86,375 3,68,17,976

Deferred Tax Liabilities for Taxable Temporary Differences on:

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets (1,60,614) 3,51,568 - 1,90,954

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost _183.23.739) _110,17,575] - [93.41314)

Total (84,84,353) (6,66,007) - (91,50,360)

Deferred Tax Asset [Net| 1,16.72.630 1,55,08.611 4,86.375 __2,76,67,616

Note:

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off Current Tax Assets against Current Tax Liabilities and where the
Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to Income Taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

11.2 Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Income Tax Exsense

Other Comjirehensive Income

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Current Tax 5,44,23,910 5,76,38,648
Deferred Tax Asset {Net) 17.27.57,820|] 11.55.08611"

11,83.33,910| | 4,21,30,037

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

11,86,886/ 486,375
11,86.886} 4,86,375

Reconciliation of Book Profit and Tax Expense

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Profit before Tax (6,74,17,654) 19,07,72,581
Income Tax using the Company's Domestic Tax Rate* (1,73,21,618) 4,79,94,566
Effect of Income Exempt from Tax/ Items Not Deductible (10,12,289) (20,73,781)
Effect of Change in Substantially Enacted Tax Rate - | |37 90,748|
(1,83,33,9101| 4.21,30,037 |

*The Tax Rate used for reconciliations above comprises of Corporate Tax Rate of 22%, applicable Surcharge and Cess, payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act,

1961,




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Owned Assets
Particulars Computer Furniture and Fixtures Office Equipment Vehicles Total
Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2019 59,40,987 38,28,726 36,14,324 14,46,643 1,48,30,680
Additions 16,14,228 | 6,64,417 12,82,132 - ' 35,60,777
Disposal - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 75,55,215 | 44,93,143 48,96,456 14,46,643 1,83,91,457
Additions 14,36,431 2,52,295 2,32,930 - 19,21,656
Disposal 25,095 =—] - - 25,095
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 89,66,551 4745438 | 51,29,386 14,46,643 2,02,88,018
Accumulated Dezreciation and Impairment
Balance as at March 31, 2019 21,25,697 4,71,069 9,46,271 1,15,771 36,58,808
Charge for the year 20,52,513 4,99,281 9,71,301 1,90,222 37,13,317
Disposal/Adjustments - - - - -
Balance as at March 31,2020 41,78,210 9,70,350 | H 19,17,572 3,05,993 | 73,72,125
Charge for the year 19,18,238 5,2549_40 'L 10,54,776 1,90,222 36,89,176 |
Disposal/Adiustments - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 60,96,478 14,96,290 29,72,348 4,96,215 1,10,61,301
NetBlock =
Balance as at March 31, 2020 33,77,005 35,22,793 29,78,884 11,40,650 1,10,19,332
Balance as at March 31, 2021 28,70,103 32,49,148 21,57,038 | 9,50,428 92,26,717

13 Other Intangible Assets
Owned Assets
Particulars Computer Software | Total
Gross Block
Balance as at March 31, 2019 DD 34,55,717 34,55,717
Additions 18,11,678 | 18,11,678
Disposal o - — "
Balance as at March 31, 2020 52,67,395 52,67,395
Additions 8,53,034 8,53,034
Digpcsal - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 61,20,429 61,20,429 |
Accumﬁal;i T).e.;reciation and Im‘Eairmen'l |
Balance as at March 31, 2019 7,271,677 7,27,677 !
Charge for the year 11,43,210 11,43,210 |
Disposal/AdjystmenEs - |
Balance as at March 31, 2020 _ 18,70,887 18,70,887 |
Charge for the year 13,00,5% 13,00,578
Disposal/Adjustments - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 31,71,465 31,71,465
Net Block i
Balance as at March 31, 2020 33,96,508 33,96,508
Balance as at March 31, 2021 29,48,964 29,48,964
14 Other Non-Financial Assets
Particulars == AsatMarch 31,2021 | Asat March 31,2020 |
Advance to Employees 4,33,065 9,64,039 |
Prepaid Expenses 7,74,918 8,37,659
Advance to Insurance Companies 6,99,825 7,57,402
Other Advances 45,000 45,000
Total 19,52,808 _26,04,100
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

{(All amount in , unless otherwise stated)

15

16

17.1

Payables
(1) Trade Payables
Particulars Asat March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises |
- Employee Payables 1,98,09,505 72,84,095
- Others* 1,66,21,177 95,69,314
1 3,64,30,682 1,68,53,409
* Includes Insurance Payable for ¥ 15,21,856/- (March 31, 2020:¥58,71,655/-). ==
Debt Securities
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
‘At Amortised Cost
Non Convertible Debentures - Listed (Secured)* 63,09,51,935 80,70,31,446
- 63,09,51,935 80,70,31,446 |
Debt Securities in India 63,09,51,935 80,70,31,446
Debt Securities outside India -
1 63,09,51,935 80,70,31,446

* Debentures are secured against hypothecation of Book Debts of the Company.

* During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has raised INIL (previous year ¥ 2,200 lakhs through private issue of secured, listed Non-
Convertible Debentures which are secured against hypothecation of Book Debts of the Company. The Debentures has tenure of 60 months and carries
rate of interest at 13.000% and are redeemable at par in single instalment. The debentures issued during the previous year have a tenure of 48 months
carries interest rate of 13.0465%, These debentures further contains both put and call option exercisable on or after twenty four months from the date of

the issue)
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)
‘Particulars | As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Term loans (Secured) )
At Amortised Cost
From Banks I 1,43,60,16,411 1,54,65,62,997
From Non banking Financial Companies 99,44,62,600 2,28,22,44,319
Collateralised Borrowings - 2,13,41,959
| Total ’ | A 2,43,04,79,011 3,85,01,49,275
Borrowings in India* 2,43,04,79,011 3,85,01,49,275
Borrowings outside India —.l -
2,43,04,79,011 _' 3,85,01,49,275

* The loans are fully secured against hypothecation of Book Debts (Refer Note 17A)
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(All amount in ¥ ,unless otherwise stated)

17.2 Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020

Unsecured

Subordinated Liabilities in India
Subordinated Liabilities outside India

Subordinated Debt (Tier Il Capital)*

5,00,43,081 5,00,41,802
5,00,43,081 5,00,41,802
5,00,43,081 5,00,41,802
___5,00,43,081 5,00,41,802

18

*During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company has raised INIL (Previous Year T500 lakhs as Subordinated Debt having a tenure of 72 months and
carries rate of interest at 17.00% and are repayable in two equal instalments at end of 5.5 years and 6 years from the date of disbursement)

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

[Particulars | _AsatMarch 31,2021 | Asat March 31, 2020
Provision for Income Tax [Net of Advance Tax of 32,04,79,353 (March 31, 2020 :%5,03,25,658)] 3,39,36,811 73,12,991
|| ¥ - = S
I I 3,39,36,811 73,12,991
19 Provisions —
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2020
Provision for Compensated Absence 37,69,259 35,73,259
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 36) 10,86,884 25,00,560
48,56,143 60,73,819
20 Other Non-financial Liabilities N
Particu_lar_s B As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020_
Statutory Dues Payable 2 18,05,028 62,22,851
18,05,028 62,22,851 |




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

21 Equity Share Capital

R As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
N . . Number Amount Number Amount
Authorized share capital I
Equity Shares of T10 each 7,50,00,000 l 75,00,00,000 7,50,00,000 75,00,00,000
7,50,00,000 | 75,00,00,000 7,50,00,000 75,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up |
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 4,82,96,200 | 48,29,62,000 4,82,96,200 48,29,62,000
4,82,96,200 | 48,29,62,000 4,82,96,200 48,29,62,000
{a) Reconciliation of Shares O ling at the b ing and at the end of the jear
- As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Number Amount b Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,82,96,200 48,29,62,000 4,34,96,200 43,49,62,000
Add : Issued during the year - - 48,00,000 4,80,00,000
Balance at the end of the year 4,82,96,200 48,29,62,000 4,82,96,200 48,29,62,000
{b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Aggrejate Shares in the Comzany:

Particulars o As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 |
Name of the Shareholders Number Per: Numb Percentage I
Fully Paid-up Equity Shares of 10 each: |
{a) GTFS Multi Services Limited 3,48,15,600 72.09 3,48,15,600 72.08

{c) Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per Share. Such holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per Share. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders
are entitled to receive the remaining Assets of the Company after distribution of all Preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholdings. However, no such preferential amounts exists currently.

22 Other Equity

Particulars

Asat March 31,2021 | As at March 31, 2020

Securities Premium

Opening Balance 8,55,13,000 4,35,13,000
Add: Received on Issue of Equity Shares for the year -1 4,20,00,000
Closing Balance - 8,55,13,000 8,55,13,000
| Statutory Reserve -
Opening Balance 11,32,69,255|  8,35,40,746
Add: Transferred from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the_ rear - 2,97,28,509
Closing Balance 11,32,69.255 11,32,69,255
Retained Earnings
| Opening Balance 30,59,41,579 25,13,98,046 |
| Add: Profit/{Loss) after Tax Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss {4,90,83,744) 14,86,42,544 H
| Add: Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 5,42,407 {14,46,137)

Less: Dividend Paid

Less: Dividend Distirbution Tax Paid

3,86,36,960

5,21,95,440
1,07,28,925

Less: Amount Transferred to St;tutory Reserve
Closini: Balance

5 2,97,28,509
21,87,63,282 | 30,59,41,579
41,75,45,537 50,47,23,834 |

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:
i) Securities Premium

Securities Premium is used to record the Premium on issue of Shares. The Reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i} Statutory Reserve

Statutory Reserve has been created out of Profits earned by the Company in the Previous Years. The Company has transferred 20% of the Profit after Tax to the Statutory Reserve in accordance with the

provision of Section 45 - IC of The Reserve bank of India Act, 1934.

iii} Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are the Profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer to General Reserves, Dividends and other distributions made to the Shareholders.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

23 Interest Income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest Income on Loans 1,00,31,98,570 1,01,62,84,713
Interest Income on Deposits 4,52,86,711 4,09,95,756
| 1,04,84,85,281 1,05,72,80,469
24 Dividend Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Dividend Income 88,995 51,34,094
88,995 51,34,094
25 Other Income -
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 Marfh 31, 2020
Miscellaneous Income* 2,68,377 11,06,668
2,68,377 11,06,668

*Includes bad debt recovery for FY 2020-21:31,97,288/- (Previous Year: T11,06,072/-) and Liabilty written Back for FY 2020-21: 3

14,744/-, (Previous Year: T 596/-).

26 Finance Costs

. For the year ended For the year ended .
Particulars
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Interest on Borrowings 45,06,64,551 48,51,39,439
Interest on Debt Securities 9,73,21,577 8,44,37,805
Interest on Subordinated Liabilities 84,82,502 42,79,149
Other Interest Expense 20,63,965 52,88,235
55,85,32,595 57,91,44,628
27 Impairment on Financial Instruments
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost
Loans 29,99,98,136 4,53,85,422
29,99,98,136 4,53,85,422
28 Employee Benefits Expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries and Wages 14,48,52,242 13,56,25,150
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,43,34,066 1,33,58,105
Staff Welfare Expenses 42,22,577 41,93,386
16,34,08,885 15,31,76,641 |
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

29

30

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 36,89,176 37,13,317
Amortisation of intangible Assets 13,00,578 11,43,210
i 49,89,754 48,56,527

Other Expenses
[ For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars - March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Electricity Charges 23,84,074 27,88,024
Rent (Refer Note 35) 3,35,44,118 3,08,79,283
Repairs & Maintenance 17,07,556 11,80,081
Software Maintenance 9,44,531 8,92,583
Director Sitting Fees 20,11,050 23,70,750
Printing & Stationery 28,48,106 35,75,093
' Telephone Expenses 34,30,348 36,93,436
Travelling Expenses 1,59,78,318 1,60,96,704
Membership Fees 14,57,033 13,79,774
Professional Fees 49,01,916 48,48,102
Statutory Auditor's Remuneration

- For Statutory Audit 17,00,000 17,00,000

- For Tax Audit 2,00,000 2,00,000

- For Certification Fees 7,00,000 3,00,000

- For Out of Pocket Expenses 64,444 50,816
Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') Expenses (refer note 34} 44,03,526 62,78,946
|Consultancy Charges 43,36,811 56,62,061
Training Expenses 9,563,760 | 13,85,072
Rates & Taxes 13,48,695 10,37,886 |
Internal Audit Fees 9,35,906 17,48,585
Security & Contractual Manpower Expenses 5,33,012 4,79,909
Insurance Premium Paid 15,36,464 14,27,468
Miscellaneous Expenses 34,11,269 22,10,859

8,93,30,937 9,01,85,432 |




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

31: Additional Information to the Financial Statements

31.1: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

!I_’_articulars f As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
|Contingent Liabilities | NIL NIL !
| |
| Commitments )

Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided NIL NIL

for :

31.2: Disclosures Required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The amount due to the Micro and Small Enterprise as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company. The disclosure relating to the Micro

and Small Enterprise as at March 31, 2021 are as under:

Description

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

a. The Principal Amount remaining unpaid to Supplier as at end of the_year

b. Interest Due as on remaining unpaid to Supplier as at the end of the year

¢. Amount of Interest Due and Payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding Interest specified under
the Act

d. Amount of Interest accrued and remaininj; unpaid as at end of the year

|such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

e The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year until|




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

32: List of Related Parties and Relationship

| Name

Relationship

GTFS Multi Services Limited

Holding Company

Ms. Abira Majumder

Individual having significant influence

Ms. Aatreyee Majumder

Key Management Personnel - Whole Time Director and Relative of Individuals having
significant influence.

Individual having significant influence.

Mr. Adipta Majumder
Mr. Bhabesh Majumder

Relative of Individuals having significant influence.

Mrs. Sona Majumder

Relative of Individuals having significant influence.

Mr. Sourav Ghosh

Key Management Personnel - Managing Director and Relative of Individuals having
significant influence.

Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh

Key Management Personnel - Whole Time Director and CEO

Transaction with_ReIated Parties

Individual and Relatives of
Particulars Holding Company Key Management Personal Individuals having
B | Significant Influence
Dividend Paid 2,78,52,480 - 90,08,400
(4,17,78,720) {-) (77,52,600)
Rent and Maintenance Charges 1,99,52,936 - -
| (1,99,25,679) (-) {-)
Rent and Maintenance Charges (paid to Mr, Bhabesh Majumder) - - 2,83,200
(') (') (2:831200)
Share Capital including Premium (Issued to Ms. Abira Majumder) - - -
{-) () (3,75,99,375)
Share Capital including Premium (Issued to Ms. Aatreyee Majumder) - - -
) 12,61,52,500) )
Share Capital including Premium (Issued to Mr. Adipta Majumder) - - -
(-) {-) (2,62,48,125)
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh - 33,94,800 -
(-) (26,02,896) (-)
Remuneration of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder - 31,12,800 -
R I (-) R (24,85,427) (-}
Remuneration of Mr. Jay_deemosh_ — - 31,12,800 -
{-) (26,71,260) {-)
# previous year's numbers are disclosed in bracket
vaski
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

32: List of Related Parties and Relationship (Continued)
Balance Outstanding Payable as at March 31, 2021

Individual and Relatives of

Particulars Holding Company Key Management Personal Individuals having

| Significant Influence
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh (Balance as at March 31, 2021) | - 2,65,800_ =
Remuneration of Mr. Sourav Ghosh {Balance as at March 31, 2020) | (-) {-) (-}
Remuneration of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2021) ‘- - 2,43,800
Remuneration of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder {Balance as at March 31, 2020) " () {-) (-}
Equity Share Capital of GTFS Multi Services Private Limited (Balance as at March 31, 2021} | 34,81,56,000 -
Equity Share Capital of GTFS Multi Services Private Limited (Balance as at March 31, 2020) | (34,81,56,000) “ ()
Equity Share Capital of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder {Balance as at March 31, 2021) | - 3,00,00,000
Equity Share Capital of Ms. Aatreyee Majumder {Balance as at March 31, 2020) {-) (2,99,49,000}) )
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Abira Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2021) - - 3,65,54,000
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Abira Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2020) {-) (-) (3,65,54,000)
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Adipta Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2021) i | - —— 3,00,00,000
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Adipta Majumder (Balance as at March 31, 2020} I -) (-) {3,00,00,000)
Equity Share Capital of Mr. _Sor_\a\_lvlalumder(BaIance as at March 31, 2021) . - o | 1,60,01,000
Equity Share Capital of Mr. Sona Majumder(Balance as at March 31, 2020} (-) {-) (1,60,01,000)
Remuneration of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh (Balance as at March 31, 2021) - 2,43,800 -
Remuneration of Mr. Jaydeep Ghosh {Balance as at March 31, 2020) | (-) — G {-) 4
Security Deposit for Rent (Balance as at March 31, 2021) |_ 69,75,600 -1 -
Security Deposit for Rent (Balance as at March 31, 2020) | (69,75,600) () 1§ )

# previous year's numbers are disclosed in bracket

33: Earnings Per Share

Particulars

For the year ended March

| For the year ended March

31, 2021 | 31, 2020
Profit/{Loss) for the year available to Equity Shareholders (%) (4,85,41,337) ©14,71,96,407
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 4,82,96,200 4,59,88,003
Nominal Value per Equity Share () 10 10
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share () (1.01) 3.20

34 : Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure

In accordance to Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company has incurred ¥ 44,03,526/- (Previous year: T62,78,946) as CSR expenditure. Under the CSR activities, the Company
has arranged free skill development training for women, free medical camp, free primary school training, financial literacy programme, merit scholarship, free coaching center and
other social security programmes. Qut of the above expenditure, ¥2,31,171/- (Previous year: ¥32,36,191) has been donated by the Company to the Prime Minister's National Relief

Fund (PMNRF} on account of the unspent balances for the previous years.

b) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars

In Cash

Yet to be Paid in Cash

Total

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any Asset

|(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

44,03,526

35 : Operating Lease - As a Lessee

44,03,526

The Company has taken certain office premises under cancellable operating lease arrangements which generally, range between 11 months to 1 year, and are usually renewable by
mutual agreement. For the year ended 31st March, 2021, lease payments charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss with respect to such leasing arrangements aggregate to ¥
3,35,44,118 (Previous Year: ¥ 3,08,79,283). The Company has availed the benefit of short term lease exemption under Ind AS 116 and charged off the lease payments charged to the

Statement of Profit and Loss.




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(ANl amount in , unless otherwise stated)

36. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a gratuity plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the benefit vests upon
completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the
gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting. The Company makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

36.1 Reconciliation of Net Defined Benefit Liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability/assets and its components:

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Obligation at the beginning of the vear 75,51,076 40,00,064
Current Service Cost 22,89,794 22,57,540
Interest Cost 5,04,993 2,40,658
Past Service Cost ) - =
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
- Changes in Experience Adjustments = 15,35.103] 288956
- Changes in Financial Assumptions 12,72,594| 15.80.157
Benefits Settled = = 3,14,667 | 8,16,299
I'Obligation at the end of the year = 92,23,499 75,51,076
Reconciliation of Present Value of Plan Assets
Plan Assets at the beginning of the vear, at Fair Value 50,50,516 38,56,444
Interest Income on Plan Assets 3,44,950 2,58,382
Re-measurement- Actuarial Gain - -
Return on Plan Assets (78,404)| 163,399]
Employer Contributions - 31,34,220 18,15,388
Benefits Settled 3,14,667 8,16,299
Plan Assets at the end of the year, at Fair Value 81,36,615 | 50,50,516
Net Defined Benefit Liability — 10,86,884 25,00,560
36.2 Expense Recognised in Profit or Loss )
particulars Year ended Yearended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Current Service Cost 22,89,794 22,57,540
interest Cost B 1,60,042 (17,723)
Net Gratuity Cost 24,49,836| 22,39,817
36.3 Income Recognised in Profit or Loss v
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Iinterest Income | ——
_ Net Gratuity Income - -
36.4 Re-measurement Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
__Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Liability
- Chanjjes in Exgierience Adjustments {2,72,594) 15,80,157
- Changes in Financial Assumptions (5,35,103) 2,88,956
__Re-measurement of the Net Defined Benefit Asset
Return on Plan Assets {greater)/ less than discount rate (78,404) {63,399)
Total Actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI (7,29,293) 19,32,512
36.5 Plan Assets
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100%
36.6 Defined Benefit Obligation - Actuarial Assumptions
Particulars ‘March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Discount Rate 6.83% 6.70%
Expected Return on Plan Asset 6.83% 6.70%
__Rate of Compensation Increase {Salary inflation) 6.00% 6.00%
Early Retirement & Disablement (Alf Causes Combined) 1.00% 1.00%




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(Allamount in *, unless otherwise stated)

36.7 Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

) March 31, 2021 |
Particulars
Increase % Decrease %
Discount Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 82,59,090 -10.46% 1,03,26,353 11.96%
Future Salary Growth (+/- 100 basis points) 1,03,25,430 11.95% 82,51,711 -10.54%
Attrition Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 92,09,203 -0.16%| 92,37,888 0.16%
Mortality Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 92,27,742 0.05% 92,@,256 -0.05%
March 31, 2020
Increase % Decrease % |
Discount Rate (+/- 100 basis points) ) 67,21,364 -10.99% 85,04,248 12.62%I
Future Salary Growth (+/- 100 basis points) 85,02,285 12.60% 67,15,927 -11.06%
Attrition Rate (+/- 100 basis points) 75,37,711 -0.18% 75,64,517 0.18%I
Mortality Rate (+/- 100 basis points) — 75,53,945 0.04% 75,48,207 -0.04%
36.8 Table Showing Cash Flow Information
Particulars | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 |
[Next Year Liability (Expected) | 1,2468995|  1,07,13,681 |
|Minimum Funding Requirements | 39,16,689 | 53,70,974 |
|company's Discretion | - - |
36.9 Table Showing Maturity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Plan
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Year 1 1,35,489 44,720
Year 2 65,396 99,328
Year 3 70,&14 54,138
Year 4 75,057 58,655
Year 5 and ibove 5,26,65,858 4,47,57,619
Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service - 5,30,12,643 4,50,14,460
Projected Benefit Obligation 92,23,499 75,51,076'

36.10 The company has contributed ¥ 78,74,117 (Previous year: ¥ 71,23,749) to Defined Contribution Schemes.

36.11, Code on Social Security

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the "Code") which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident
Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the
subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules

to determine the financial impact are published.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
(All amount in Z, unless otherwise stated)

37: Risk Management and Impairment Allowance

Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business and sound risk management is critical to the success. As a financial intermediary, the Company is exposed to risks that are particular to
its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks
associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk management policy is approved by the Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors.

The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk through- out the Company. The risk management process is
continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness
in the changing risk landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven basis.

The Company has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis.

37.1 Credit Risk

The Company is a rural focused NBFC-MFI with a geographically diversified presence in India and offer income generation loans under the joint liability group model, predominantly to
women from fow-income households in Rural Areas. Further, as we focus on providing micro-loans in Rural Areas, our results of operations are affected by the performance and the
future growth potential of microfinance in rural India. Our clients typically have limited sources of income, savings and credit histories and our loans are typically provided free of
collateral. Such clients generally do not have a high level of financial resilience, and, as a result, they can be adversely affected by declining economic conditions and natural calamities.
In addition, we rely on non-traditional guarantee mechanisms rather than tangible assets as collateral, which may not be effective in recovering the value of our loans.

In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the Company creates impairment loss allowance basis the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the outstanding
loans as at balance sheet date.

The below discussion describes the Company’s approach for assessing impairment as stated in note 3.14 of the significant accounting policies.

A) Probability of Default (PD)

The Company determines PD on a collective basis. The Company uses historical information of its loan portfolio to estimate PD.

In determining the above PD's, an effort is made to eliminate outliers for a particular observation period which are not likely to happen in future. Accordingly, the Company determines
PD depending upon the underlying classification of asset (i.e. Stage | or Stage I).

B) Exposure at Default (EAD)
The outstanding balances as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company.

C) Loss Given Default

The Company determines its expectation of lifetime loss by estimating recoveries towards its entire loan portfolio through analysis of historical information. The Company determines its
recovery rates by analysing the recovery trends over different periods of time after a foan has defaulted. Based on its analysis of historical trends, the Company has assessed that
significant recoveries happen in the year in which default has occurred. Accordingly, it believes no significant difference arise from discounting such recoveries for determining ultimate
loss rates.

37.2 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factor. Such changes in the values of financial
instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risks as follows:

37.2a Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

We are subject to interest rate risk, principally because we lend to clients at fixed interest rates and for periods that may differ from our funding sources, while our borrowings are at
both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods. We assess and manage our interest rate risk by managing our assets and liabilities. Our Asset Liability Management
Committee evaluates asset liability management, and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any, are being managed appropriately.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the
profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows

Finance Cost As at March 31, 2021
0.50 % Increase 0.98 Crore

0.50 % Decrease : 0.98 Crore
37.2b Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk is not material and it is primarily on account of investment of temporary treasury surplus in the highly liquid debt funds for very short durations.
The Company has a board approved policy of investing its surplus funds in highly rated debt mutual funds and other instruments having insignificant price risk, not being equity funds/
risk bearing instruments.

37.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk arises due to the unavailability of adequate funds at an appropriate cost or tenure.
The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient iquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company consistently generates
sufficient cash flows from operating and financing activities to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Our resource mobilization team sources funds from multiple
sources, including from banks, financial institutions and capital markets to maintain a healthy mix of sources. The resource mobilization team is responsible for diversifying fundraising
sources, managing interest rate risks and maintaining a strong relationship with banks, financial institutions, mutual funds, insurance companies, other domestic and foreign financial
institutions and rating agencies to ensure the liquidity risk is well addressed. The maturity schedule for all financial liabilities and assets are regularly reviewed and monitored. Company
has a asset liability management (ALM) policy and ALM Committee to review and monitor the liquidity risk and ensure the compliance with the prescribed regulatory requirement. The
ALM Policy prescribes the detailed guidelines for managing the liquidity risk.

The table in Note No. 40.8 provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabilities as at year end.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

39. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial asset, Financial liability and equity instrument are

disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.
A] Catejories of Financial Instruments

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
T . Carrying Value Fair Value | Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,21,57,522 13,21,57,522 26,73,62,459 26,73,62,459
it) Other Bank Balances 49,52,13,065 49,52,13,065 55,99,24,920 55,99,24,920
iii) Trade Receivables 1,46,231 1,46,231 1,15,302 1,15,302
iv) Loans 3,20,29,25,821 3,20,29,25,821 | 4,65,50,74,477 | 4,65,50,74,477
v) Other Financia! Assets | 13,84,64,754 13,84,64,754 19,38,52,842 19,38,52,842
\Sub-total 3,96,89,07,392 | 3,96,89,07,392 | 5,67,63,30,002 | 5,67,63,30,002
b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss |
i) Investments_ - - 50,33,593 | 50,33,593
Sub-total L - - 50,33,593 | 50,33,593
Total Financial Assets 3,96,89,07,393 | 3,96,89,07,393 | 5,68,13,63,595 | 5,68,13,63,595
Financial liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i) Payables 3,64,30,682 3,64,30,682 1,68,53,409 1,68,53,409
ii) Debt Securities 63,09,51,935 65,10,62,996 80,70,31,446 81,36,89,747
iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 2,43,04,79,011 | 2,44,47,27,290 | 3,85,01,49,275 | 3,92,33,52,896
iv) Subordinated Liabilities - 5,00,43,031 5,02,56,666 5,00,41,802 5,02,25,311I
Total Financial Liabilities 3,14,79,04,709 | 3,18,24,77,634 | 4,72,40,75,932 | 4,80,41,21,369 |

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not
recorded and measured at fair value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure
purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Loans Measured at Amortised Cost

The management assessed the fair values of loans approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these instruments.

Other Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

For other financial assets that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of
impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash, cash equivalents, other bank

balances, Trade receivables and Other financial assets.

Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings Measured at Amortised Cost
The fair values of debts are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on terms,

discounted at a rate that reflects market risks.

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

For other financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity {less than twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasonable

approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include Trade and Other payables. —
//éIaSkI/; ,
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

39. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued)

B. Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financia! instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market {Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity and mutual funds instruments
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity and mutual funds instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Valuation technigues with observable inputs {Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level

3.

Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

As at March 31, 2021

tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans - 3,20,29,25,821 3,20,29,25,821
Investments - -
Other Financial Assets - 13,84,64 754 13,84 64,754,
- 3.34,13 90,575 3.34,13 90,575
Financial Liabilities
Debt Securities - 63,09,51,935 63,09,51,935
Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - 2,43,04,79,011 2,43,04,79,011
Subordinated Liabilities . - - 50043081 50043081
- - 3,11 14,74, 027 3,11,14,74 027 |
As at March 31, 2020
[Tk Lewel 3 Level 1 Tatal |
Financial Assets
Loans - 4,65,50,74,477 4,65,50,74,477
Investments | 50,33,593 - 50,33,593|
Other Financial Assets - - 19,38,52,842 19,38,52,842
50,33,593 - 4,84,89,27,319 4,85,39,60,912
Financial liabilities
Debt Securities - F 80,70,31,446 80,70,31,446
|Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - - 3,85,01,49,275 3,85,01,49,275
|Subordinated Liabilities = 1 = - 5,00,41,802 5,00,41,802
| . | - 4,70,72,22,523 | 4,70,72,22,523
Fair Value of the Compani's Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Briis
Fair Value as at ol Valuation Signilicant
Particulars | , Technique and Unobservable
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020 Hlerarchy_ Key Ingut Input
Financiaj Assets
Loans 3,20,29,25,821 4,65,50,74,477 Level 3 Note (i) Note (i)
Investments - 50,33,593 Level 1 Note (ii) N/A
Other Financial Assets 13,84,64,754 19,38,52,842 | Level 3 Note (i) Note (i)
Financial liabilities I
Debt Securities 65,10,62,996 81,36,89,747 Level 3 Note (jii) Note (iii)
Borrowings {other than Debt Securities) 2,44,47,27,290 |  3,92,33,52,896 | Level 3 Note (iii) Note (jii)
Subordinated Liabilities 5,02,56,666 5,02,25,317 Level 3 Note (iii) Note {iii)




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LUIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements
(Al amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

i) Income Approach,

The discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value of the expected future benefits to be derived from the Loan Assets and Other Financial Assets. However,

since these loans and financials assets have short term maturity, the fair value approximates the carrying value.

{ii) Quoted Prices.
Quoted bid prices of an active market was used.
(iif) Discount rate, determined using the average cost of lending of the company.

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Reconciliation Loans

yu— March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 4,65,50,74,477 | 3,91,09,12,864
Issuances 1,97,27,21,000 6,92,25,25,000
Settlements 3,42,48,69,657 6,17,83,63,387
Closing Balance 3,20,29,25,821 4,65,50,74,477
Unrealised Gains and Losses related to Balances held at the end of the period - -

C. Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of Financial Assets that are not derecognised in their entirety :

Assignment: The company has carried out an securitisation transaction wherein it has securitised loans to banks. Even though the loan assets have been securitised, the company still
holds the right {legal as well as contractual) to recover the entire overdue balance in respect of these loan assets. Further, the returns are dependent on the realisation from the
securitised loan assets, leading to company bearing the risk of non-realisation from the pool.

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities.

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020 _|
Carrying Amount of Assets - 1,15,91,990
Carrying Amount of Associated Liabilities - 2,13,41,959
Fair Value of Assets - 1,15,91,990
Fair Value of Associated Liabilities 2,13,41,959
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

40: RBI Disclosures

40.1 Disclosure as required under RBI Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 (as amended) :

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Tier | Capital 79,_65,45,105 1,09,44,08,330
Tier |l Capital 4,43,23,114 9,85,56,390 |
Total . 84,08,68,219 1,19,29,64,720
Total Risk Weighted Assets 3,71,98,44,598 5,35,13,03,566
Capital Ratios: B | ! [
. |
Tier | Capital as a percentage of Total Risk Weighted Assets (%) 21.41% 17.86%
" " 3 . o
Tier Il Capital as a percentage of Total Risk Weighted Assets (%) 1.19% 1.84%
— —— — =+ 0]

Total Capital (%) | 22.60% 19.70%
40.2 Investments =. it

particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 | 2020

'HDFC Liguid Fund - Mutual Fund {fully in India) - 50,33,593
40.3 Ratings X )

Particulars Rating Agency Ratings Date Valid upto Amount
Term Borrowings from Banks and Sub Debt 1 Acuite BBB+ 11-01-2021 18-06-2021 400.00 Crore
Non Convertible Debentures ] ICRA BBB- 29-10-2018 28-10-2022 55.00 Crore
Non Convertible Debentures ICRA BBB- | 23-12-2019 23-12-2024 22.00 Crore

40.4 The Company has no exposure to Capital Market (apart from indirect exposure through Investments in Mutual Funds as disclosed above) or has not issued any

Gold Loans.

40.5 Exposure to real estate sector, both direct & indirect
The Company does not have any direct or indirect exposure to the real estate sector as at March 31, 2021.

40.6 Other Disclosures

a) The Company, during the current year and previous year, has no exposure in derivatives.

b) It has also not transferred any loans through securitization nor has purchased or sold any non-performing financial assets during the said periods.

¢) The Company has not engaged in financing of any holding company products. During the year, no Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) was

exceeded by the Company.

d) The Company is not registered with any from other financial sector regulators.
e) During the Current and Previous Years, no penalties were imposed by the RBI and other regulators.

f) There were no Draw Down from Reserves, Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs during the current and previous years.
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JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

(All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

40.9 Movement of Loan and Estimated Credit Loss (ECL)

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2020 4,70,05,89,807 96,07,595 2,43,64,458 4,73,45,61,860
A igi ing th d off fi
New Assets originated during the year, netted off for (1,31,92,47,772) (69,10,278),  17,40,07,529 |  (1,15,21,50,521)
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year (64,45,824) (64,45,824)
Movement between Stages -
Transfer to Stage 1 2,22,475 (1,16,962) (1,05,513) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1,64,89,32,128)| 1,64,89,32,128 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (7,69,13,563) (600) 7,69,14,163 -
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2021 1,65,57,18,819 1,65,15,11,883 26,87,34,813 3,57,59,65,516
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 B Stage 3 | Total =
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2020 4,85,56,391 | 80,62,511 2,28,68,481 ] 7,94,87,383
N t igi d ing th t f
ew Assets originated during the year, netted off for (3,93,08,405) (77,92,779)]  11,46,53,580 6,75,52,397
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year = (60,50,122) (60,50,122)
Movement between Stages -
Transfer to Stage 1 580 (11,696) (99,036) (1,10,153)
Transfer to Stage 2 (42,96,284) 16,48,93,213 16,05,96,928
Transfer to Stage 3 ) (2,00,398) (60) 7,21,92,490 7,19,92,031
_ECL Allowance as at Ma_rch 31, 2021 47,51,884 16,51,51,188 20,35,65,393 37,34,68,464
. Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
_Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2019 3,93,82,01,895 | 33,77,503 90,85,631 B 3,95,06,65,029
New Assets originated dur.mg the year., netted off for 77,37,23.918 58,41,504 1,03,37,002 78,99,02,424
repayments and derecognised portfolio | - |
Assets written off during the year | (60,05,593) (60,05,593)|
|Movement between Stages _ = = -
|Transfer to Stage 1 B 11,12,761 (10,54,598) (58,163)_ -
Transfer to Stage 2 {15,41,336) 15,41,336 -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1,09,07,431) (98,150) 1,10,05,581 -
Gross Carrying Value of Assets as at March 31, 2020 4,70,05,89,807 96,07,595 2,43,64,458 4,73,45,61,860
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2019 2,80,94,166 29,84,010 86,73,989 3,97,52,165
New Assets originated dur'lng the year', netted off for 2,04,96,031 48,40,255 95,56,095 3,48.92,381
repayments and derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year (56,36,849) (56,36,849)
Movement between Stages
Transfer to Stage 1 3,318 (6,46,584) (54,592) (6,97,858)
Transfer to Stage 2 (4,596) 9,45,007 - 9,40,410
Transfer to Stage 3 (32,528) (60,177) 1,03,29,838 1,02,37,133
|ECL Allowance as at March 31, 2020 4,85,56,391 80,62,511 2,28,68,481 7,94,87,383




JAGARAN MICROFIN PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021
{All amount in ¥, unless otherwise stated)

40.9 Movement of Loan and Estimated Credit Loss (ECL) {Continued)

ICom,narison b P

d under IRACP and Impairment Allowances made under Ind AS 109:

| | i Loss Allowances . Differences
. Asset Classification Gross Carrying {Provisions) as Net Carrying i Dt between Ind AS
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms | Amount as per required as per
as per Ind AS 109 Ind AS required under Amount IRACP norms® 109 provisions
I ind AS 109 and IRACP norms
1 2 | 3 4 5-3-4 6 7-46
r[’erforminm: Assets )
i Stage 1 1,65,57,18,820 43,23,114 1,65,13,95,706 == 43,23,113.62
Stage 2 1,65,15,11,883 16,51,51,188 1,48,63,60,695 = 16,51,51,188
Subtotal 3,30,72,30,703 16,94,74,302 3,13,77,56,401. = 16,94,74,302
Non Performing Assets (NPA| 1 —
Substandard Stage 3 26,87,34,813 20,35,65,393 6,51,69,420 7,58,92,039 12,76,73,354
Subtotal - 26,87,34,813|  20,35,65,393 6,51,69,420 7,58,92,039 12,76,73,354,
| (-
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments etc. which
are in the scope of IndAS 109 but not covered under Income NA NA
Recogpnition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms
(IRACP| 1 |
Subtotal ) 1 = :
Stage 1 . 1,65,57,18,820 43,23,114 1,65,13,95,706 - 43,23,114
Total Staje 2 1,65,15,11,883 16,51,51,188 1,48,63,60,695 = = 16,51,51,188
! Stage 3 26,87,34,813 20,35,65,393 6,51,69,420 7,58,92,039 12,76,73,354

* As per IRAC norms, the aggregate loan provision to be maintained by NBFC-MFIs at any point of time shall not be less than the higher of a) 1% of the outstanding loan portfolio or b} 50%
of the aggregate loan instalments which are overdue for more than 90 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the aggregate loan instalments which are overdue for 180 days or more:

40.10 Disclosure as per R81/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 6th August, 2020
During the year, the Company has invoked resolution plan for eligible borrowers based on the parameters laid down in accordance with the restructuring policy
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI vide its notification no. RB!/2020-21/16
DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated on August 6, 2020. The required details of the accounts where resolution plan were invoked as at March 31, 2021 are as

follows:

(A)
Number of accounts
where resolution

Type of borrower plan has been

(8)

exposure

to

accounts

mentioned at (A)

<)

(D)

Of (B), aggregate | Additional funding

amount of debt

sanctioned, if any,

ludine h,

(E)
Increase in
provisions on

that was

of the

of

the resolution plan

implemented under before converted into of the
this wind pl ather securities plan and
of the plan implementation

Personal Loans ] - : -
Corporate persons = 5 -
Of which, MSMEs - -
Others | 59,524 1,02,70,83,002 - 54,50,34,841 |
Total 59,524 1,02,70,83,002 -

54,50,34,841 | 15,05,68,236

15,05,68,236

40.11 Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 17th April, 2020 on 'COVID-19 Regulatory Package -

Asset Classification and Provisioning’ in respect of SMA/:

where the mor

was extended *

the residual provisions

Rincrorel
B Asset classification as per Ind AS 109 | 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
1) Respective amounts In SMA/Overdue categories. where the Moratorium/deferment
| 0.64 2.55
lil Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended $ = 0.03 1.83
iii} Provision made on the cases where asset classification benefit is extended # NA NA
iv) Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and NA NA
||

Note: Amount represents principal outstanding only.

/deferment was extended.

* Outstanding as on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively on account of all cases in SMA / overdue categories where moratorium benefit was extended by

the Company as at March 31, 2020.

$ Represents outstanding balances as on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 with respect to accounts which were not classified as Stage Ill as at March 31, 2020 due to

moratorium,

# The Company has made adequate provision for impairment loss allowance (as per ECL model) for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. No specific loan
leve! provisioning is made with respect to loan to which asset classification benefit was extended.

41. Disclosure as required under RB| Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17

dated Sep

q.

d

01, 2016, as uf

During the year the average interest on borrowings calculated on balances of average monthly outstanding borrowings is 15.80%.

During the year the Company has charged an average interest rate of 22.34%, calculated on average monthly balances of outstanding loan portfolio.

42. Disclosure as pier FEDAI Circular SPL-05.BC/UFCE Format/2018 dated 17th May 2018

f'?\.)\ﬁ.Skifi,S'

' QR
-":-"fChartered Q;,
T»'.Account.- @

O

Quarterly Data on Foreign Currency Exposures

In INR crores

Unhedged

Hedged through forward or

Naturaf ||

derivative (#)

Hedge

S — </=1 ';';ar
FCY Receivables .

> 1 year

Total

</=1 féar

> 1 year

Total </=1year

Exports .

Loans to }V/WOS .

Others =

FCY Payables = . S [

[mports -

Trade Credits =

ECBs =

Other FCY loans

INR to USD swats

Total r =

Note: EBID (i.e. profit after tax + Depreciation + Interest on debt + Lease rentals}as on

31st March, 2021 is 354,85,25,130/-
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43: Additional information to the financial statements

Notes to the balance sheet of a non deposit taking Non Banking Financial Company as required under RBI master direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated september 01, 2016, as
amended

Particulars Amount Amount
Liabilities side: Outstanding Overdue

1) Loans & advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of accrued interest thereon but not paid

(a) Debentures: Secured 63,09,51,935 Nil

Unsecured Nil Nil

(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b} Deferred credits Nil Nil
{c) Term loans 2,48,05,22,092 Nil
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowings Nil il
(e) Commercial papers Nil Nil
(f) Public deposits Nil Nil
{g) Other loans (specify nature) Nil Nil

2) Break-up of {1){f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
{a} In the form of unsecured debentures Nil Nil
(b} In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debenture where there is a shortfall in the value of security

Nil Nil
(c) Other public deposits Nil Nil
Particulars Amount
Assets Side: Outstanding
3) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables[other than those included in (4) below]
(a) Secured Nil
{b) Unsecured 3,20,29,25,821
4) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and
other assets counting towards AFC activities.
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
(a) Financial lease Nil
(b) Operating lease Nil
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
{a) Asset on hire Nil
(b} Repossessed assets Nil
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities.
(a) Loans where assets has been repossessed Nit
(b) Loans other than (a) above Nil
5) Break up of investments
Amount
Current investments outstanding
(A) Quoted:
(i) Shares : {(a) Equity Nil
{b) Preference Nil
(ii) Debentures and bonds Nit
{iif) Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Government securities Nil
{v} Others (please specify) Nil
(B} Unquoted:
(i) Shares: {(a) Equity Nil
(b) Preference Nil
{(ii) Debentures and bonds Nil
{iii) Units of mutual funds Nil
(iv} Government securities Nil =
(v) Others (please specify) Nil p "'Q_.\aEki[’
o 3
Amount o - 4
Long term investments outstanding | '6 f Chart:, 3\
—=|Ac ,-”nta W
(A) Quoted: ,,?-u ? .- ’ N
(i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil i, S @
(b) Preference Nil 1“1 * :
(i) Debentures and bonds Nil e
(iii) Units of mutual funds Nit
{iv] Government securities Nil
(v} Others (please specify) Nil
{B} Unquoted:
(i) Shares : (a) Equity Nil
{b) Preference Nil
(i) Debentures and bonds Nil
{iii} Units of mutual funds Nit
(iv) Government securities Nil

(v) Others (please specify) Nil
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6) Borrower group -wise classification of assets, financed (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions

(i) Related parties Secured Unsecured Total

(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil

{b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil

{c} Other related parties Nil Nil Nil
(it) Other than related parties Nil 3,20,29,25,821 3,20,29,25,821
Total Nil 3,20,29,25,821 3,20,29,25,821
7} Investor group wise classification of all investments (Current and long term) in shares and securities {both quoted and unquoted category)

Market value/Break-
up on fair value or Book value

Particulars NAV
(i) Related parties

(a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil

(c) Other related parties Nil Nit
(ii) Other than related parties Nil Nil
8) Other Information:
Particulars
(i} Gross non-performing assets*

(a) Related parties Nil

{b) Other than related parties 11,69,24,582
{ii) Net non performing assets*

{a) Related parties Nil

(b) Other than related parties 1,20,35,839
{ili) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt Nil

* Non-performing assets represents contracts which are overdue for more than 90 days.

44: Segment Information

The Company, being a NBFC-MFI operates in a single reportable operating segment i.e. business of Micro Financing activities in India and hence there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS

108 'Operating segments’

45: Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

The COVID -19 pandemic continues to spread across the globe and India, which has contributed to a significant volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in global and
local economic activities. The financial statements, includes the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company's financial statements which are dependent on future developments,
which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its
impact whether Government mandated or elected by the Company and its subsequent impact on the recoverability’s on the Company’s assets. The Company has, based on current available

information and based on the policy approved by the board, determined the provision for impairment of financial assets.

Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers this provision to be adequate and expects to recover the carrying amount of these financial assets. Given the
uncertainty over the potential macro-economic condition, the impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and

the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

46: Previous Year's Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification / disclosure.

47: Adoption In Board Meeting

This Financial Statements together with the Accounting Policies and Notes have been adopted in the Meeting of the Board dated September 10, 2021.
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